
IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

Date:  Thursday, January 15, 2015 

Time:  1:00 PM 

Location: Lower Saucon Township Council Meeting Room 

Attendance: Donna Louder and Hazem Hijazi, Landfill Committee Members; Al Schleyer, IESI; Chris Taylor, 

Hanover Engineering, Host Municipal Inspector; and Diane Palik for the Township.   Absent:  

Priscilla deLeon, Council Liaison.  Intern Devon Dowd was also present. 
 

Mr. Schleyer reviewed the monthly tonnages for December.  He reviewed the three Form U Submittals from 

December 3, 2014 to December 30, 2014.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said the Annual Groundwater Trend Analysis report was completed; the next one is due June 2015.  

The 4Q14 Groundwater Sampling event was completed; 1Q15 is scheduled the week of March 16, 2015. 
 

Mr. Schleyer said they had the general correspondence reports for Form U’s, Abatement System report, and 3Q14 

Groundwater report.   

 

Mr. Schleyer reviewed the DEP protection inspections from December 12, 2014 through January 8, 2015. Mr. 

Schleyer said there were four Host Municipal Inspections from December 3, 2014 through today, January 15, 2015. 

 

Mr. Schleyer reviewed the Commercial Waste Vehicles for the month of December.  He said there was a fire on a 

garbage truck.  The truck was picking up residential waste in Bethlehem and the driver may have picked up ashes 

that someone put out, that were thought to be cold, but there were hot embers in it.  When he got towards the 

landfill, the driver saw his truck was smoldering.  IESI notified the Steel City Fire Department and the police.  They 

got  him in and took him out to the far end of the landfill, and by that time the lettering on the outside of the truck 

was blistering, so they dumped the load right on the blacktop, and it burst into flames.  They surrounded it with a 

dirt berm and the fire company put the fire out.  The dirt berm captured the water and soaked it up.  They left it sit 

there in a roll off container for several days.  Mr. Taylor said IESI handled this well. 

 

Mr. Schleyer reviewed the Police Report from December 2, 2014 through December 31, 2014 where the PD was 

on-site six different times.  The Police come to the landfill randomly and they sit in the parking lot and observe the 

weight sign when the trucks come in.  On December 2, December 13, and December 18, 2014 no violations were 

observed.   

 

Mr. Schleyer reviewed the BRE and Flare Operations from December 2, 2014 through December 18, 2014.  There 

were five shutdowns during this time.  There were no events after December 18, 2014.  IESI said they are burning 

anywhere from 1,000 to 1,300 scfm extra and the flare is running continuously; BRE burns anywhere from 2,200 to 

2,400 scfm.  Both the flare and BRE have a continuous operation. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said the North Slope road was passable.  The sedimentation traps are functional.  Mr. Schleyer said 

the abatement system continues to operate and discharge to the Bethlehem Waste Water Treatment Plant.  

Intermittent malfunctions of the well pumps and controls are repaired or replaced, as needed. Mr. Schleyer 

reviewed the radiation monitoring, where there was one on November 4 and December 30, 2014. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said Phase IV Construction Activities, Cell 4-E Stage 1-2 is the current active disposal area.  He said 

they are committed to put down exceedance of intermediate cover, so they have been doing that on the South slope 

and will continue working right up to the top.  The top area has been done.  Chris and Donna could see the depth of 

the cover soil today.  The requirement is 12”, but they are going well above that to suppress any odors that may be 

coming out.  Ms. Louder said she notices a difference and hasn’t had any problems.  Mr. Hijazi asked about the 

fragrance for the spray mister.  Mr. Schleyer said it’s a matter of just getting the water up there right now; it’s not 

practical with the freezing temperatures. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said there was one complaint received by IESI on December 17, 2014 from Kings Mill Road where 

they complained of methane odors during the evening and dirt on Applebutter Road.  The dirt has been cleaned off 

of Applebutter Road.  DEP receives most of the complaints.  In the DEP reports, they list the dates of the 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

January 15, 2015 

 

     Page 2 of 2 

 

  

complaints.  Mr. Taylor said he saw about 50 complaints.  Mr. Schleyer said that’s from October, November and 

December.  Ms. Louder said on December 1
st
, eight people called in within minutes of each other.  Mr. Schleyer 

said they are putting more dirt on the trash and putting a clay bentonite which swells up around the gas wells.  Ms. 

Louder said she hasn’t smelled anything within the last couple of weeks.  She said this has been on ongoing 

situation for a couple of years now.  She’s been in touch with the VP of the company and had multiple meetings 

with him.  She brought these things to his attention and he made promises to them as a community and individuals 

he would do everything he can to stop this, and he has stepped up.  The man is as good as his word.  Everything he 

has promised, he took the steps to put it in place.  Ms. Louder wondered about the complaint that IESI received on 

12/17/14, and Mr. Schleyer said the BRE flare was running that day. 

 

Mr. Taylor said during the inspection they noticed a lot of stockpile for the extra cover being put on the landfill.   

They noticed all the areas had over a foot and a half of cover.  He said he understands IESI is making preparations 

for the construction of Cell 4-E, Stage 3 by way of beginning to place fill material and getting it to a certain grade 

elevation and stockpiling more cover for this construction.  Mr. Schleyer said right now it’s just the general work 

being done.  Mr. Taylor said he will submit his inspection report to the Township.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said the leachate collection flow rates continue to be monitored and reported.  Mr. Schleyer said the 

flow rates were more in December because of increased rainfall and the flow rates reflected that.  Last year’s 

records in December were very similar to this year. 

 

Ms. Louder said two weeks ago she came home in the dark and in her driveway, it looked like an airplane was 

coming directly at her, looking up at the landfill direction, the North wall.  She saw headlights pointing directly at 

her in her vision.  She heard the noise from the work being done up there.  She called IESI and talked to Mike.  

Mike said it’s their new road.  She told him about the headlights.  She has been seeing it ever since.  Today on the 

tour, when they got up there, you can sit up there and look down and see her house.  The trucks and work 

equipment are directed right at her house.  Her concern is the height of the landfill, which isn’t even maxed out yet.  

She read a section of page 8 of 9, No. 20, from the Modification of Waste Disposal Permit, Form 13-A, it says 

Bethlehem PA Landfill should limit the height of Phase IV.  This should only apply to Phase IV and if the height 

becomes visible, the height of Phase IV should be limited to that elevation observed.  Mr. Hijazi said her request is 

that the work is becoming visible.  Ms. Louder said she can see the truck tipper from her house.  Mr. Schleyer said 

they’ve done a line of sight a couple of times from the towpath.  Ms. Louder said when was it, in summer or 

winter?  Mr. Taylor said you are seeing it through the trees, not over the trees?  Ms. Louder said yes.  Next time Mr. 

Taylor does his inspection, she asked him to go in his driveway to observe this.  Mr. Hijazi asked her if she sees 

this in the summer?  Ms. Louder said when the trees are full in the summer, not as much, but why would she put up 

seeing it in the  middle of winter - six months is okay to see it and six months is not okay to see it.  Mr. Hijazi said 

the IESI Engineer should be aware of this and look at the elevations.  Mr. Taylor he will bring this to the technical 

committee meeting in February.  Mr. Hijazi asked Ms. Louder if she can only see this from her house?  What about 

her neighbors?  Ms. Louder said she’s at the angle directly in front of this; the others will have the wall.  Mr. Taylor 

had a map of IESI landfill to see where Ms. Louder’s house was and where she saw these headlights.  Ms. Louder 

said this is getting capped off and closed, so how much are you going to get out of that?  Mr. Schleyer said the 

hatched marks are the capped area, there’s no cap over there.  Ms. Louder said not now, but there’s going to be.  By 

the time you get this where you need it and you get the airspace, it will be capped.  Why can’t you permanently cap 

it and just work this way.  Mr. Schleyer said that will be a discussion when the application comes out soon.  Mr. 

Hijazi said that should be taken into consideration if you go above the higher elevations.  Mr. Schleyer said once 

the application gets sent out to DEP and the Township, they will have the final elevation and the lines of sight will 

be in there.  He will make a note and send it to IESI’s engineers.  Mr. Taylor said the Township will do a full 

engineering review. 

 

The next meeting is Thursday, February 19, 2015 at 1:00 p.m.  The tour will be at 11:00 a.m.  The meeting 

adjourned; the time was 1:55p.m. 


